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N O T | C E O F Notice is hereby given that the Inugural Annual

General Meeting of the Queensland Greyhound

A N N U A L Racing Club Inc, will be held on Wednesday,

13th November, 2024, at 7:00pm in the Pacers &

G E N E R AL Chasers Bistro, Albion Park Raceway, Amy
MEETING

Street, Albion

Business to be transacted shall be:

1. Apologies.

2.To confirm the Minutes of the Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club previous Annual
General Meeting held 25th October 2023 and the Minutes of the Ipswich Greyhound
Racing Club previous Annual General Meeting held 9th September 2023.

3.To receive the audited Statement of Accounts of the Club for the year ended 30th
June 2024.

4.To elect members of the Committee.

5.To appoint Auditors for the ensuing year

Election of the Committee:

Nominations for Committee positions are to be in writing on the prescribed form, duly signed by
two financial members. Nominations will be accepted from any financial member of the Queensland
Greyhound Racing Club.

Each such nomination shall be lodged with the CEQ, no later than 5:00pm on Wednesday 30th
October 2024.

By order of the Committee
Peter Gleeson
Chief Executive Officer




TREASURER'S REPORT

BRISBANE IPSWICH QUEENSLAND
01/07/23-11/03/24 01/07/23-11/03/24 12/03/24 - 30/06/24

Total Income $2,935,854.00 $2,440,941.00 $1,977,421.00

Total Expenditure $3,042,893.00 $2,259,009.00 $2,536,485.00

Total
Comprehensive
Income

for the Year

$346,120.00 $181,932.00 -$746,407.00

Queensland Greyhound Racing Club

Current Assets $6,494,944.00

Non Current Assets $4,793,224.00

Total Assets $11,288,168.00

Current Liabilities $983,290.00

Non Current Liabilities $103,231.00

Total Liabilities $1,086,521.00




COMMITTEE

Under Clause 10.4 (c) of the Queensland Greyhound Racing Club Constiution, the entire committee will

resign effective from the 2024 annual general meeting but are eligible to be re-elected at that meeting.

The names of the Board members during the year
or since the end of the financial year are:

Les Bein — Chairman(Appointed 12/3/24)

Robert Essex — Deputy Chairman (Appointed 12/3/24 & Resigned 7/7/24 )
Bob Lambert (Appointed 12/3/24 & Resigned 23/5/2024))
Graham Hall (Appointed 12/3/24)

Steve Woods (Appointed 12/3/24 & Resigned 18/12/23)

Wade Core (Appointed 12/3/24)

Eleanor Wallis — Treasurer (Appointed 23/5/24)

William Warner (Appointed 18/7/24)
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

BOARD REPORT

The Board members submit herewith the annual report of the Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. for the financial
period 1 July 2023 to 11 March 2024.

Board Members

The names of the Board members during the year or since the end of the financial year are:

Les Bein — Chairman (Resigned 12 March 2024) Eleanor Wallis — Treasurer (Resigned 12 March 2024)
Wade Core — Deputy Chairman (Resigned 12 March 2024) Dennis Pegg (Resigned 12 March 2024)

David Wallis (Resigned 12 March 2024)

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the association during the financial year were:

- Host race meetings throughout the year; and
- To provide social facilities to members of the association.

Significant Changes

The Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club and Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club amalgamated to form a single
incorporated association, known as the Queensland Greyhound Racing Club (QGRC) as of 12 March 2024.

The QGRC is responsible for the operation of the two existing greyhound racing facilities in South-East Queensland
at Albion Park and the Ipswich Showgrounds.

The assets, liabilities and operation of the Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc, were transferred to QGRC as of 12
March 2024. The Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club ceased to exists from 12 March 2024.

Subsequent Events

Upon amalgamation with the Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club the assets, liabilities and operations of the Brisbane
Greyhound Racing Club Inc. have been transferred to the Queensland Greyhound Racing Club Inc. on 12 March
2024.

The Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. ceased to exist from 12 March 2024.

Operating Result
The deficit after providing for income tax amounted to $107,039 (2023:$235,276 surplus)

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Board.

E Wallis - Treasurer

Dated this day of September 2024
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

Note 2024 2023
(9 Months) (12 Months)
$ $
Revenue 2,935,854 4,119,956
Accounting and audit fees 4 (12,613) (15,656)
Affiliation fees (27,019) (32,250)
Committee expenses (13,715) (17,106)
Cost of food and beverage sales (180,042) (224,590)
Cost of merchandise sold (2,782) (4,478)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (150,020) (201,708)
Employee benefits expense 3 (1,610,700) (2,060,709)
Finance costs 3 (979) (2,166)
Function expenses (105,688) (147,825)
Grant Expenses (5,320) -
Insurance 38 (1,879)
Investment expenses (4,725) (6,655)
Loss on disposal of financial assets - (6,604)
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment - (5,986)
Motor Vehicle expenses (8,702) (11,337)
Promotions expense (211,551) (292,038)
Property Expense (27,093) (24,714)
Racing expense (268,203) (328,658)
Repairs and maintenance (86,578) (114,255)
Restaurant expenses (72,781) (82,521)
Telephone expenses (6,496) (7,832)
Tote expenses (15,461) (20,036)
Travel expenses (70,704) (70,308)
Other expenses (161,759) (205,369)
Current year surplus/(deficit) before income tax (107,039) 235,276
Income tax expense la - -
Net current year surplus/(deficit) (107,039) 235,276
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, net of tax 453,159 218,668
Total other comprehensive income for the year 453,159 218,668
Total comprehensive income for the year 346,120 453,944
Net current year surplus attributable to members of the association (107,039) 235,276
Total comprehensive income attributable to members of the
association 346,120 453,944

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash on hand

Accounts receivable and other debtors
Inventories on hand

Other

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other payables
Employee provisions

Lease liability

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee provisions

Lease liability

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Reserves
Retained surplus

TOTAL EQUITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 11 MARCH 2024

Note 11/3/2024 30/6/2023

$ $

5 1,842,964 1,272,030

6 728,496 613,641

7 20,115 19,513

8 86,366 53,692

2,677,941 1,958,876

9 4,038,730 4,485,955

10 648,598 699,421

13 14,325 32,757

4,701,653 5,218,133

7,379,594 7,177,009

11 301,023 431,970

12 220,525 200,241

13 16,609 27,901

538,157 660,112

12 33,711 45,756

13 - 9,535

33,711 55,291

571,868 715,403

6,807,726 6,461,606

14 1,085,934 632,775

5,721,792 5,828,831

6,807,726 6,461,606

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

Balance at 30 June 2022

Comprehensive income
Net surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to
members of the association

Balance at 30 June 2023

Comprehensive income
Net surplus/(deficit) for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to
members of the association

Balance at 11 March 2024

Note

14

14

Financial Asset

Revaluation Retained
Reserve surplus Total

$ $ $
414,107 5,593,555 6,007,662
- 235,276 235,276
218,668 - 218,668
218,668 235,276 453,944
632,775 5,828,831 6,461,606
- (107,039) (107,039)
453,159 - 453,159
453,159 (107,039) 346,120
1,085,934 5,721,792 6,807,726

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Grants (state) operating received

Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Receipts from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment income received

Purchase of financial assets

Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of leases liability

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash held
Cash on hand at beginning of financial year

Cash on hand at end of financial year

Note 2024 2023
(9 Months) (12 Months)

$ $
1,516,998 2,126,119
1,417,312 2,063,868
(3,386,171) (4,107,800)
(979) (2,166)
18 (452,840) 80,021
(80,765) (54,552)
- 6,498
169,894 257,908
(1,995,092) (337,343)
2,950,564 516,172
1,044,601 388,683
(20,827) (38,124)
(20,827) (38,124)
570,934 430,580
1,272,030 841,450
5 1,842,964 1,272,030

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

The financial statements cover Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. as an individual entity. Brisbane Greyhound
Racing Club Inc. is an association incorporated in Queensland and operating pursuant to the Associations
Incorporation Act 1981.

The Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club and Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club amalgamated to form a single
incorporated association, known as the Queensland Greyhound Racing Club (QGRC) as of 12 March 2024. The
Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. ceased to exist from 12 March 2024. These financial statements are for the
period 1 July 2023 to 11 March 2024 and are the last set of financial statements for the association.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on ?? September 2024 by the members of the Board.

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. applies Australian Accounting Standards — Simplified Disclosure Requirements
as set out in AASB 1060: General Purpose Financial Statements — Simplified Disclosures for For-Profit and Not-for-
Profit Tier 2 Entities.

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards — Simplified Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board
(AASB) and the Associations Incorporation Act 1981. The association is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting
purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial
statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions to which they apply.
Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and have
been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are
based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded
to the nearest dollar.

Accounting Policies
a. Income Tax

The association is exempt from Income tax, by virtue of Section 50-45 of the Income Tax assessment Act
1997.

b. Inventories on Hand

Inventories held for sale are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventories held for
distribution are measured at cost adjusted, when applicable, for any loss of service potential.

C. Property, Plant and Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to the
estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. A formal assessment
of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer to Note 1(f) for details of
impairment).

The cost of fixed assets constructed by the association includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing
costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
association and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as expenses in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life
commencing from the time the asset is available for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
Leasehold improvements 5-10%
Motor Vehicles 22.5%
Plant and equipment 5-33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

Leases

The association assess whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The association
recognises a Right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in
which it is the lessee, except for short term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less)
and leases of low value assets (less than $5,000). For these leases, the association recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the association’s incremental borrowing rate. The association’s
incremental borrowing rate was determined by reference to borrowing rates available to the association from
financial institutions for the purchase of assets similar to those being leased.

Lease payments made are split between the interest component (using the effective interest method) and a
reduction in the lease liability. The lease liability is split between current and non-current, with the current
portion representing the expected reduction in the lease liability in the next 12 months.

The Right-of-use assets is valued at the same value of the lease liability on inception and any initial direct
costs. The right of assets is subject to depreciation using the straight line method over the shorter of the period
of the lease or the useful live of the underlying asset. The value of the Right-of-use asset is reduced by any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset whichever is the
shortest.

Concessionary Leases

For leases that have significantly below-market terms and conditions principally to enable the association to
further its objectives (commonly known as peppercorn/concessionary leases), the association has adopted
the temporary relief under AASB 2019-8 and measures the right of use assets at cost on initial recognition.

Finance leases

Leases of fixed assets, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset
(but not the legal ownership) are transferred to the association, are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised, recognising an asset and a liability equal to the present value of the minimum
lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives where it is likely that
the association will obtain ownership of the asset. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the
lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e.

Financial Instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the association becomes a party to the
contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is the date that the association commits itself
to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs
except where the instrument is classified “at fair value through profit or loss”, in which case transaction costs
are expensed to profit or loss immediately. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to
determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain a
significant financing component or if the practical expedient has been applied as specified in AASB 15.63.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at:

- amortised cost; or

- fair value through profit and loss.

Financial asset

Financial assets are subsequently measured at:

- amortised cost;

- fair value through other comprehensive income; or

- fair value through profit and loss

on the basis of the two primary criteria, being:

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; and

- the business model for managing the financial assets.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost when it meets the following conditions:
- the financial asset is managed solely to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income when it meets
the following conditions:

- the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates; and

- the business model for managing the financial asset comprises both contractual cash flows collection
and the selling of the financial asset.

By default, all other financial assets that do not meet the conditions of amortised cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income's measurement condition are subsequently measured at fair value through profit
and loss.

Equity instruments — shares and units in listed investments

The association made an irrevocable election to measure the equity instruments — shares and units in listed
investments, in other comprehensive income, while the dividend revenue received on underlying equity
instruments investment will still be recognised in profit and loss.

Derecognition

Derecognition refers to the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from the
statement of financial position.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e.

Financial Instruments
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A liability is derecognised when it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires). An exchange of an existing financial liability for a new one with substantially modified
terms, or a substantial modification to the terms of a financial liability, is treated as an extinguishment of the
existing liability and recognition of a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the asset is
transferred in such a way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred.

All of the following criteria need to be satisfied for derecognition of a financial asset:
- the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or been transferred,;
- all risk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been substantially transferred; and

- the association no longer controls the asset (i.e. it has no practical ability to make unilateral decisions
to sell the asset to a third party).

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity which was elected to be classified under fair value through other
comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment
The association recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on:

- financial assets that are measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income;

Loss allowance is not recognised for:
- financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss; or
- equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Expected credit losses are the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of a
financial instrument. A credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due and all cash
flows expected to be received, all discounted at the original effective interest rate of the financial instrument.

The association uses the simplified approaches to impairment for its trade receivables, as applicable under
AASB 9:

The simplified approach does not require tracking of changes in credit risk in every reporting period, but instead
requires the recognition of lifetime expected credit loss at all times.

In measuring the expected credit loss, a provision matrix for trade receivables was used taking into
consideration various data to get to an expected credit loss (i.e. diversity of its customer base, appropriate
groupings of its historical loss experience, etc).

Recognition of expected credit losses in financial statements

At each reporting date, the association recognised the movement in the loss allowance as an impairment gain
or loss in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost includes the loss allowance relating to
that asset.

Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income. An amount in relation to change in credit risk is
transferred from other comprehensive income to profit or loss at every reporting period.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

f.

Impairment of Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the association assesses whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. The assessment will consider both external and internal sources of information. If such an
indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing the recoverable amount of that
asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use, to the asset’s carrying
amount. Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable amount is immediately recognised in
profit or loss.

Where the future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent upon the asset’s ability to
generate net cash inflows and when the association would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining
future economic benefits, value in use is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of an asset.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the association estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is recognised against the revaluation surplus
in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the
revaluation surplus for that class of asset.

Employee Provisions
Short-term employee benefits

Provision is made for the association’s obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee
benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before 12 months
after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service, including wages,
salaries and superannuation. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts
expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.

The association’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and superannuation
are recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits

Provision is made for employees’ annual leave entitlements not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service. Other long-
term employee benefits (including long service leave entitlements) are measured at the present value of the
expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future
wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures, and are discounted at rates determined
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have maturity dates
that approximate the terms of the obligations. Any remeasurements of obligations for other long-term
employee benefits for changes in assumptions are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the
changes occur.

The association’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current provisions in its
statement of financial position, except where the association does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, in which case the obligations are presented as
current provisions.

Cash on Hand

Cash on hand includes cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Accounts Receivable and Other Debtors

Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable
from customers for goods or services sold in the ordinary course of business. Receivables expected to be
collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other
receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. Refer to Note 1(e) for further discussion on
the determination of impairment losses.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

-

Revenue and Other Income

Revenue from hosting race meetings are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
under the terms of the agreement with Racing Queensland. Revenue is recognised when the specific
performance obligations are satisfied. This is generally upon completion of a race meeting.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance obligations have been satisfied.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery, as this corresponds to the completion of
the performance obligations.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial assets is
the rate inherent in the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has
been established.

Revenue from the provision of membership subscriptions is recognised on a straight line basis over the
financial year.

For grants and other contributions of assets, that do not meet the enforceable and sufficiently specific
performance obligations criteria under AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the revenue is
recognised upon recognition of the financial asset as required under AASB 1058: Income for Not-for-profit
Entities. This is generally upon receipt.

For grants received to acquire or construct a non-financial assets (Property, plant and equipment) that is
retained by the association for its own use, the amounts received are recognised as unearned income and
only recognised as income when the association has purchased or constructed the non-financial asset. The
association recognises income in profit or loss when or as the association satisfies its obligations under the
terms of the grant.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.
Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount
of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the
statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable, to the ATO are presented as operating cash flows
included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.

Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in
presentation for the current financial year.

Where the association has retrospectively applied an accounting policy, made a retrospective restatement or
reclassified items in its financial statements, an additional statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period will be disclosed.

Accounts Payable and Other Payables

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for
goods and services received by the association during the reporting period that remain unpaid. The balance
is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably
measured. Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation
at the end of the reporting period.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

0.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The Board evaluates estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial statements based on historical
knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future
events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the
association.

Key estimates
i) Impairment — general

The association assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluation of conditions
and events specific to the association that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable
amounts of relevant assets are reassessed using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various
key assumptions.

Key judgments
i) Provision for impairment of receivables

The association reviews the receivables outstanding at the end of the year for any debtors that are
unlikely to be collected. A provision for impairment of receivables is recognised for those debts that
are considered uncollectable.

ii) Investment in Shares in Publically listed entities

The association has an investment in the shares of publically listed entities with a total value of
$4,038,730 (2023:$4,152,955) at the end of the reporting period. Should share values decline to a
level which is in excess of 50% below cost or should prices remain at levels below cost for a period in
excess of 24 months, the association has determined that such investments will be considered
impaired in the future.

iii) Employee benefits

For the purpose of measurement, AASB 119: Employee Benefits defines obligations for short-term
employee benefits as obligations expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render the related services. As the association expects
that all of its employees would use all of their annual leave entitlements earned during a reporting
period before 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the association believes that obligations
for annual leave entitlements satisfy the definition of short-term employee benefits and, therefore, can
be measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid to employees when the obligations
are settled.

Fair Value of Assets

The association measures some of its assets at fair value on a recurring basis depending on the requirements
of the applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

Fair value is the price the association would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability
in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants
at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is used
to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the characteristics of the
specific asset or liability. The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are
determined using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent
possible, the use of observable market data.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the asset or liability
(i.e. the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the absence of such
a market, the most advantageous market available to the association at reporting date (i.e. the market that
maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset or minimises the payment made to transfer the liability, after
taking into account transaction costs and transport costs).
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

g.

New and amended Accounting standards adopted by the Association

Accounting standards adopted during the year

There were no new Australian Accounting Standards adopted during the year that had a material impact on
these financial statements.

New accounting standards applicable in future financial years

The Australian Accounting Standards Board has issued new accounting standards that will become
applicable in future financial years. The directors believe that these new accounting standards will not have
a material impact on the financial statements of the association in future years.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 2: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Racing revenue:
- Dog Trials

- Grants (state) operating

Other revenue:
- Broadcasting revenue
- Capital Grants

- Investment income

Food and beverage sale
- Functions

- Gain on sale of financial assets

Management fees

Membership fees

Sales of merchandise

- Sponsorships

Tote income

- Wages recovered

Other Income

Total revenue

NOTE 3: EXPENSES

Employee benefit expense:

- Salaries and wages

- Superannuation expense
- WorkCover

- Fringe benefits tax

- Payroll tax

Interest expense:
- Interest paid - leases

- Interest paid - other

NOTE 4: AUDITORS’ FEES

Remuneration of the auditor of the association for:
- Auditing or reviewing the financial report

- Accounting and taxation services

2024 2023
$ $

77,274 101,273
1,258,273 1,924,178
1,335,547 2,025,451
567,051 807,759
30,865 13,368
128,290 203,165
413,470 529,354
121,548 147,199
55,088 -
1,665 2,220
11,409 10,675
4,440 6,409
98,956 126,504
20,496 40,166
78,124 96,425
68,905 111,261
1,600,307 2,094,505
2,935,854 4,119,956
1,394,459 1,791,417
146,992 179,854
24,385 23,815
18,000 21,073
26,864 44,550
1,610,700 2,060,709
794 2,059
185 107
979 2,166
11,813 14,856
800 800
12,613 15,656
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

Note 2024 2023
NOTE 5: CASH ON HAND $ $
Cash at bank 1,812,452 1,241,518
Cash on hand 30,512 30,512
19 1,842,964 1,272,030
Reconciliation of cash
Cash on hand at the end of the financial year as shown in the
statement of cash flows is reconciled to items in the statement of
financial position as follows:
Cash at bank — unrestricted 1,812,452 1,241,518
Cash on hand — unrestricted 30,512 30,512
1,842,964 1,272,030
NOTE 6: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER DEBTORS
CURRENT
Trade receivable 580,036 245,008
Provision for impairment - -
Other receivables 148,460 368,633
19 728,496 613,641
NOTE 7: INVENTORIES ON HAND
CURRENT
Promotional material (at lower of cost and net realisable value) 5,566 6,558
Food and beverage (at lower of cost and net realisable value) 14,549 12,955
20,115 19,513
NOTE 8: OTHER ASSETS
CURRENT
Prepayments 86,366 53,692
NOTE 9: FINANCIAL ASSETS
NON CURRENT
Investments in equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Listed investments, at fair value:
- shares in listed securities at fair value 19 4,038,730 4,152,955
Investments designated at amortised cost
Term deposits 19 - 333,000
4,038,730 4,485,955
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 9: FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investments in equity instruments are held for medium-to long-term planned purposes and are not held for trading.
The association elected to designate investments in equity instruments as at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The Board believe that recognising current shorter-term fluctuations in these investments' fair value in profit
or loss would not be in line with the association’s plan to hold them over a longer term.

2024 2023
NOTE 10: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT $ $
Leasehold land improvements:
At cost 448,767 448,767
Accumulated depreciation (267,011) (205,011)
181,756 243,756
Plant and equipment:
At cost 907,714 872,225
Accumulated depreciation (540,437) (482,519)
367,277 389,706
Motor Vehicles:
At cost 146,472 102,094
Accumulated depreciation (46,907) (36,135)
99,565 65,959
Total property, plant and equipment 648,598 699,421

Movements in carrying amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and

the end of the current financial year:

Leasehold land Plant and
Improvements Equipment Motor Vehicles Total
$ $ $

Balance at 30 June 2022 322,499 425,754 75,512 823,765
Additions 3,191 51,361 - 54,552
Disposals - (12,484) - (12,484)
Depreciation expense (81,934) (74,925) (9,553) (166,412)
Balance at 30 June 2023 243,756 389,706 65,959 699,421
Additions - 36,387 44,378 80,765
Disposals - - - -
Depreciation expense (62,000) (58,816) (10,772) (131,588)
Balance at 11 March 2024 181,756 367,277 99,565 648,598
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 11: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER PAYABLES

CURRENT

Unsecured liabilities:

Trade payables

Other payable

Unearned revenue — Sponsorships and memberships
Unearned revenue — Capital grant

GST liability

Financial liabilities at amortised cost classified as accounts

payable and other payables
Accounts payable and other payables:
- total current

- total non-current

Less: Unearned revenue

Financial liabilities as accounts payable and other payables

NOTE 12: EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS
CURRENT
Employee provisions — annual leave entitlements

Employee provisions — long service leave entitlements
NON CURRENT

Employee provisions — long service leave entitlements

Analysis of Employee Provisions

Opening balance at 1 July
Additional provisions
Amounts used

Balance at 11 March

Employee Provisions — Leave Entitlements

Note

19

2024 2023

$ $
76,379 210,975
135,278 127,762
32,167 13,422
- 49
57,199 79,762
301,023 431,970
301,023 431,970
301,023 431,970
(32,167) (13,471)
268,856 418,499
118,327 117,123
102,198 83,118
220,525 200,241
33,711 45,756
33,711 45,756

Annual Leave

Long Service

Entitlements Leave
$ Entitlements
$
117,123 128,874
78,070 20,868
(76,866) (13,833)
118,327 135,909

The provision for employee benefits represents amounts accrued for annual leave and long service leave.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 12: EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS
Employee Provisions — Leave Entitlements

The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements and the
amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the
required period of service and are expected . Based on past experience, the association does not expect the full
amount of annual leave or long service leave balances classified as current liabilities to be settled within the next
12 months. However, these amounts must be classified as current liabilities since the association does not have
an unconditional right to defer the settlement of these amounts in the event employees wish to use their leave
entitlement.

The non-current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have
not yet vested in relation to those employees who have not yet completed the required period of service.

In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service
leave being taken is based upon historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria for employee benefits
have been discussed in Note 1(g).

NOTE 13: LEASES Note 2024 2023

NON-CURRENT

Right-of-use assets — Plant and equipment

At cost 186,326 186,326
Accumulated depreciation (172,001) (153,569)
14,325 32,757

Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Closing

Balance Balance

$ $ $ $ $

Plant and equipment 32,757 - - (18,432) 14,325
32,757 - - (18,432) 14,325

Right of use assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the term of the lease. The lease term is 7
years.

The lease recognised are in relation to Photocopiers.

The association has a commitment with Racing Queensland Limited with respect to its occupancy at the Albion
Park Raceway. From 1 July 2011, no rent was payable by the association to Racing Queensland Limited for rent of
the Albion Park facility. Under AASB 16; Leases and AASB 1058; Income for Not-for-profit Entities this arrangement
is considered a peppercorn lease and has not been accounted for under the standards as it is considered to be
immaterial.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

Note 2024 2023
NOTE 13: LEASES $ $
CURRENT
Lease liability 19 16,609 27,901
NON-CURRENT
Lease liability 19 - 9,535
Opening Additions Repayments Interest Closing
Balance Balance
$ $ $ $ $
Lease Liability 37,436 - (21,621) 794 16,609
37,436 - (21,621) 794 16,609

NOTE 14: RESERVES
Financial Asset Revaluation Reserve

The financial assets revaluation reserve represents the cumulative amount of fair value gains/losses recognised in
other comprehensive income in remeasuring the investments in shares in listed companies.

NOTE 15: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

There are no contingent liabilities and contingent assets for the year ended 11 March 2024 (2023:$nil)

NOTE 16: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD AND GOING CONCERN

Upon amalgamation with the Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club the assets, liabilities and operations of the Brisbane
Greyhound Racing Club Inc. have been transferred to the Queensland Greyhound Racing Club Inc. on 12 March
2024.

The Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. ceased to exist from 12 March 2024.

Note 2024 2023
NOTE 17: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS $ $

a. Key Management Personnel

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
association, directly or indirectly, including its Board members, is considered key management personnel.

Key management personnel compensation:

—  short-term benefits 304,254 377,962
- post-employment benefits 33,138 39,470
337,392 417,432

The association’s Board members are not entitled to receive remuneration for the services provided to the
association.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

NOTE 17: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
b. Other Related Parties

Other related parties include close family members of key management personnel, and entities that are
controlled or jointly controlled by those key management personnel individually or collectively with their close
family members.

There were no transactions with a related party of the association or the key management personnel.

Note 2024 2023
NOTE 18: CASH FLOW INFORMATION $ $

Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities with net current
year surplus

Current year surplus/(deficit) after income tax (107,039) 235,276
Non-cash flows in current year surplus:
—  depreciation expense 150,020 201,708
—  Net (gain)/loss on sale of financial assets (55,008) 6,604
Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 5,986
- Interest and dividends recognised as Investing Activities (169,894) (257,908)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
- (Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable and other debtors (114,855) (78,407)
- (Increase)/decrease in inventories (602) (2,648)
- (Increase)/decrease in other assets (32,674) (22,675)
- Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and other payables (130,947) (53,698)
- Increase/(decrease) in employee provisions 8,239 45,783
(452,840) 80,021

NOTE 19: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The association’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, term deposits, investments in listed
shares, receivables, payables and leases.

The carrying amounts for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9: Financial
Instruments as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost:

Cash on hand 5 1,842,964 1,272,030
Accounts receivable and other debtors 6 728,496 613,641

Financial assets designated as at fair value through other
comprehensive income

— Investments in listed shares and units 9 4,038,730 4,152,955
Financial assets designated at amortised cost

— Term deposits 9 - 333,000
Total financial assets 6,610,190 6,371,626
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

Note 2024 2023
NOTE 19: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT $ $
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
— Accounts payable and other payables 11 268,856 418,499
- Lease liability 13 16,609 37,436
Total financial liabilities 285,465 455,935

Refer to Note 20 for detailed disclosures regarding the fair value measurement of the association’s financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Financial Risk Management Policies

The association’s Board is responsible for, among other issues, monitoring and managing financial risk exposures
of the association. The Board monitors the association’s transactions and reviews the effectiveness of controls
relating to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Discussions on monitoring and managing financial risk exposures
are held by the Board.

The Board’s overall risk management strategy seeks to ensure that the association meets its financial targets, while
minimising potential adverse effects of cash flow shortfalls.

NOTE 20: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The association has the following assets, as set out in the table below, that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis after initial recognition.

Valuation techniques

The association selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific
characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the association are
consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches:

— the market approach, which uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions for
identical or similar assets or liabilities;

— the income approach, which converts estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single
discounted present value; and

— the cost approach, which reflects the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity.

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use when
pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, the
association gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using market data (such as publicly available information on actual
transactions) and reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or
liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for which market data is not available and therefore are
developed using the best information available about such assumptions are considered unobservable.

The association does not subsequently measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis and has no assets
or liabilities that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

Note 2024 2023

NOTE 20: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS $ $
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Investments in equity instruments designated as at fair
value through other comprehensive income:
—  shares in listed entities 9 4,038,730 4,152,955

4,038,730 4,152,955

For investments in listed entities, the fair values have been determined based on closing quoted bid prices at the

end of the reporting period.

NOTE 21: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The association’s activities are largely funded by operating grants received from Racing Queensland Limited. At
the date of this report, the members of the Board had no reason to believe that Racing Queensland Limited would

not continue to provide financial support to the Club.

NOTE 22: ASSOCIATION DETAILS

The registered office and principal place of business of the association is:
Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc.

Albion Park Raceway

Amy Street

BREAKFAST CREEK QLD 4010
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

STATEMENT BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2023 TO 11 MARCH 2024

In the opinion of the Board, the financial report as set out on pages 4 to 24:

1. Presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. as at 11
March 2024 and its performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards — Simplified Disclosure Requirements and the Association Incorporations Act 1981.

2. Atthe date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Brisbane Greyhound Racing
Club Inc. will be able to pay its debts as and when the fall due.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board and is signed for and on behalf of the Board
by:

Treasurer

Dated this day of September 2024
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

Report on the Financial Report
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc., which comprises the statement of financial
position as at 11 March 2024, the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the period 1 July 2023 to 11 March 2024, notes comprising a summary of the material
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the statement by members of the Board.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. is in accordance with the
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 1981 (QIld), including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the association’s financial position as at 11 March 2024 and of its performance for the year
then ended; and

(i) thatthe financial records kept by the association are such as to enable financial statements to be prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards — Simplified Disclosure Requirements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent
of the association in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s
APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in
Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Board of the association is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the association’s annual report for the period 1 July 2023 to 11 March 2024, but does not include the financial report and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board for the Financial Report

The Board of the association is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Associations Incorporation Act 1981 (QId) and for such internal
control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view
and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the association’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
either intends to liquidate the association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

Report on the Financial Report
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the association’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Board.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the association to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PRIESTLEYS M C ANDREASSEN
Chartered Accountants Partner

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

Signed at Brisbane on this day of September 2024

Page 27 of 27



®
G.J. Walsh & co
w Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

Association Audit Report

Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc
ABN 41917 286 707
For the 9 months ended 31 May 2024

Prepared by GWDR Pty Ltd trading as G J Walsh & Co



\ G.J. Walsh & co

w Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

Contents

3 Committee's Report
5 Income and Expenditure Statement
8 Assets and Liabilities Statement

9 Statement of Cash Flows - Direct Method
10  Notes to the Financial Statements

14  True and Fair Position

15  Auditor's Report

17  Certificate By Members of the Committee

18  Depreciation Schedule

Association Audit Report Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc Page 2 of 31



°
G.J. Walsh & co
W Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

Committee's Report

Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc
For the 7 months ended 31 March 2024

Committee's Report

Your committee members submit the financial report of Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc for the period ended 31 March 2024.

Committee Members

The names of committee members throughout the year and at the date of this report are:

Committee Member Position

Steve Woods (deceased) President
Peter O'Reilly Treasurer
Maree Westwood Secretary

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the association during the financial year is: Operating in the Greyhound Racing Industry in the region of
Ipswich.

Significant Changes

There has been a significate change in trading this year, the Club has merged with Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club effective 31
March 2024.

Operating Result

The surplus for the financial year amounted to, as per below: $181,931.58
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Committee's Report G-J- WaISh & CO

W Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

Going Concern

This financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates continuity of normal business activities
and the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The ability of the association to
continue to operate as a going concern is dependent upon the ability of the association to generate sufficient cashflows from
operations to meet its liabilities. The members of the association believe that the going concern assumption is appropriate.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Committee on:

Maree Westwood (Secretary)

Date / /

Peter O'Reilly (Treasurer)

Date / /
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Income and Expenditure Statement

Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc
For the 7 months ended 31 March 2024

| %

G.J. Walsh & co

Certified Practising Accountants

TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023
Income

Grant Operating - 141,713.00
Auction Proceeds 208,035.00 459,719.58
Broadcasting Income - International 556,562.00 595,829.00
Insurance Recoveries 74,699.57 -
Membership Subscriptions 5,849.92 18,840.77
Non Race Day Functions - 901.81
Other Income 23,506.43 4,578.68
Raffle Income 28,027.33 14,990.81
Race Book Sales 1,574.62 2,070.16
Racing Queensland Meeting Payment 985,449.83 1,217,509.30
Reimbursements from Racing Queensland 11,121.82 76,838.69
Sponsorship 39,500.01 17,954.56
Tote Income - Gross Commissions 15,169.88 20,785.27
Track Fees and Trials 77,558.25 102,922.70

Sales
Sales - Bar 155,108.06 181,255.81
Sales - Catering 206,653.51 249,991.35
Sales - Merchandise 2,650.44 1,562.67
Total Sales 364,412.01 432,809.83

Total Income

Cost of Sales

2,391,466.67

3,107,464.16

Opening Stock
Purchases

Closing Stock
Total Cost of Sales

23,017.50
192,721.31
(25,387.01)
190,351.80

11,980.04
239,246.02
(23,017.50)
228,208.56

Gross Surplus

Other Income

2,201,114.87

2,879,255.60

Interest Income

Total Other Income

49,475.03
49,475.03

10,153.38
10,153.38

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached

Audit Report.
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G.J. Walsh & co
W Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADYISORS AND AUDITORS

Income and Expenditure Statement

JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023
Expenditure
Accounting Fees 11,321.95 10,418.80
Advertising & Promotion 11,524.47 8,323.04
Auction Bonus - 4,000.00
Auction Day Expenses 75,937.18 243,540.25
Audit Fees 2,200.00 6,500.00
Bank Fees 8,642.43 5,261.11
Bookkeeping Fees 19,650.00 21,345.00
Cleaning & Pest Control 31,271.97 22,005.51
Committee Expenses 654.05 9,892.05
Computer Expenses 3,880.30 1,873.93
Consultancy & Legal expenses 24,870.17 25,072.40
Depreciation & Amortisation 65,906.95 74,496.02
Donations paid 1,724.75 2,200.00
Electricity & Gas 46,788.74 49,719.66
Employee Settlement - 7,500.00
Fees, Permits & Licences 2,124.37 2,311.01
Fundraising Expenses 13,926.03 7,153.54
Hire of Plant & Equipment 29,484.00 29,710.87
Insurance
Insurance 21,986.65 19,901.96
Work Cover 45,190.12 34,777.49
Total Insurance 67,176.77 54,679.45
Motor Vehicle Expenses 18,523.87 19,094.33
Office Equipment, Minor & Other 110.63 150.00
Operations Manager Payments 9,026.92 -
Other Expense - 130.44
Other Racing Expenses 35,706.31 61,241.73
Other Sub-Contractors - Racing 26,821.82 33,750.00
Postage, Freight & Courier 942.43 767.57
Printing & Stationery 18,766.30 25,341.39
Promo Meals and Drinks 14,668.08 12,625.42
Provision for Employee Entitlements (54,861.16) 1,290.09
Race Course Rental 116,518.96 147,355.57
Rates & Taxes 40,211.94 40,095.52
Repairs & Maintenance
Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings 17,207.85 27,422.83
Repairs & Maintenance - Equipment 91,876.19 30,717.48
Repairs & Maintenance - Minor CAPEX < $1,000 - 163.14
Repairs & Maintenance - Track 56,031.41 54,892.74
Total Repairs & Maintenance 165,115.45 113,196.19
Security Expenses 26,781.89 12,579.62
Sponsorship Expense - 500.00
Staff Amenities 33,368.80 33,401.18

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached

Audit Report.
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Income and Expenditure Statement

G.J. Walsh & co

W Certified Practising Accountants

TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023

Staff Training 4,148.45 2,100.00
Subscriptions 3,207.22 3,640.51
Superannuation 102,590.94 118,904.48
Sweepstakes Expense - 3,318.19
Telephone & Fax Charges & Internet 2,247.60 7,889.30
Theft - 30/09/2023 25,452.90 -
Tote Charges 1,147.06 -
Trophies 10,485.40 13,742.81
Veterinary & Farrier Fees 11,889.10 70,708.72

Wages & Salaries
Total Expenditure

1,038,703.28 1,152,455.07
2,068,658.32 2,460,280.77

Current Year Surplus/ (Deficit)

181,931.58 429,128.21

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached

Audit Report.
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G.J. Walsh & co
W Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

Assets and Liabilities Statement

Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc
As at 31 March 2024

NOTES 31 MAR 2024 30 JUNE 2023
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 326,948.83 166,781.82
Trade and Other Receivables 3 154,602.35 118,101.34
Inventories 4 25,387.01 23,017.50
Other Current Assets 5 2,912,739.60 3,013,336.82
Total Current Assets 3,419,677.79 3,321,237.48
Non-Current Assets
Plant & Equipment, Motor Vehicles 7 380,692.89 384,427.87
Land and Buildings 6 562,857.41 568,412.12
Intangibles 8 23,782.50 23,782.50
Total Non-Current Assets 967,332.80 976,622.49

Total Assets

4,387,010.59

4,297,859.97

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 9 133,744.77 171,664.57
Total Current Liabilities 133,744.77 171,664.57
Non-Current Liabilities
Employee Entitlements 10 112,938.29 167,799.45
Total Non-Current Liabilities 112,938.29 167,799.45
Total Liabilities 246,683.06 339,464.02

Net Assets

Member's Funds

4,140,327.53

3,958,395.95

Current Year Earnings
General Reserve
Retained Earnings

Total Member's Funds

181,931.58
10,700.00
3,947,695.95
4,140,327.53

429,128.21
10,700.00
3,518,567.74
3,958,395.95

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached

Audit Report.
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G.J. Walsh & co
W Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

Statement of Cash Flows - Direct Method

Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc
For the 7 months ended 31 March 2024

JUL 2023-MAR 2024

Operating Activities

Payments to suppliers and employees (1,369,356.69)
Interest received 49,475.03
GST (136,918.86)
Cash receipts from other operating activities 2,579,431.00
Cash payments from other operating activities (955,592.68)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 167,037.80
Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale of investments 150,000.00
Payment for property, plant and equipment (44,747.26)
Payment for investments (48,402.78)
Other cash items from investing activities (3,369.51)
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 53,480.45
Financing Activities
Other cash items from financing activities (51,427.55)

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities

(51,427.55)

Net Cash Flows 169,090.70
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 157,983.11
Net change in cash for period
ATM Float 960.00
Business Easy Saver 131,357.75
Cheque Account 3486 27,990.53
Debit Mastercard 0730 289.91
TAB 8,492.51
Total Net change in cash for period 169,090.70
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 327,073.81
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached
Audit Report.
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G.J. Walsh & co
W Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc
For the 7 months ended 31 March 2024

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

In the opinion of the Committee of Management, the association is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to exist users of
the financial statements who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their
information needs. These special purpose financial statements have been prepared to meet the reporting requirements of the
Act.

The financial statements are special purpose financial statements prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting
requirements of the of the Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure requirements of
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and
AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs modified, where applicable,
by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

The following significant accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless stated otherwise, have been
adopted in the preparation of this financial report.

Revenue and Other Income

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade discounts
and volume rebates allowed. For this purpose, deferred consideration is not discounted to present values when recognising
revenue.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in
the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established.

Grant and donation income is recognised when the entity obtains control over the funds, which is generally at the time of
receipt.

If conditions are attached to the grant that must be satisfied before the association is eligible to receive the contribution,
recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Leasehold improvements and office equipment are carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation.

The depreciable amount of all PPE is depreciated over the useful lives of the assets to the association commencing from the time
the asset is held ready for use.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives
of the improvements.

Employee Provisions

Provision is made for the association’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the end of
the reporting period. Employee provisions have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

These notes should be read in conjunction with the attached Audit Report.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Cash on Hand

G.J. Walsh & co
W Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADYISORS AND AUDITORS

Cash on hand includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts Receivable and Other Debtors

Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable from donors.
Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All

other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Accounts Payable and Other Payables

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and
services received by the association during the reporting period that remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current
liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023
2. Cash on Hand
Cash at Bank
Cheque Account 3486 161,339.39 133,348.86
Debit Mastercard 0730 4,589.04 4,299.13
Business Easy Saver 131,357.75 -
Total Cash at Bank 297,286.18 137,647.99
Cash & Floats
ATM Float 11,630.00 10,670.00
Bar 400.00 400.00
Petty Cash 750.00 750.00
TAB 15,732.65 16,163.83
Takeaway 350.00 350.00
Trials Float 800.00 800.00
Total Cash & Floats 29,662.65 29,133.83
Total Cash on Hand 326,948.83 166,781.82
These notes should be read in conjunction with the attached Audit Report.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

G.J. Walsh & co

W Certified Practising Accountants

TAX ACGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS
JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023
3. Trade and Other Receivables
Trade Receivables
Accounts Receivable 154,602.35 118,101.34
Total Trade Receivables 154,602.35 118,101.34
Total Trade and Other Receivables 154,602.35 118,101.34
JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023
4. Inventories
Stock on Hand - Bar 11,384.66 10,142.34
Stock on Hand - Catering 14,002.35 12,875.16
Total Inventories 25,387.01 23,017.50
JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023
5. Other Current Assets
Term Deposit - 26871 777,953.42 750,000.00
Term Deposit 6339 670,831.52 819,401.50
Bank Guarantee 10606937/CL01 Secured by Term Deposit 10606937/2505 400,000.00 400,000.00
Term Deposit 6027 1,062,954.66 1,043,935.32
Short term emergency loan - Amie Cleal-Swan 1,000.00 -

Total Other Current Assets

2,912,739.60  3,013,336.82

JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023
6. Land and Buildings
Buildings
Buildings at Cost
Land & Buildings at Cost 619,510.37 619,510.37
Less Accumulated Depreciation on Land & Buildings (56,652.96) (51,098.25)
Total Buildings at Cost 562,857.41 568,412.12
Total Buildings 562,857.41 568,412.12
Total Land and Buildings 562,857.41 568,412.12
These notes should be read in conjunction with the attached Audit Report.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

G.J. Walsh & co
W Certified Practising Accountants

TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023
7. Plant and Equipment, Motor Vehicles
Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment at Cost
Fixed Assets - Parkland Assets 86,350.00 86,350.00
Less Accumulated Depreciation on Parkland Assets (62,895.10) (61,673.77)
Furniture & Fittings 60,843.41 59,512.41
Less Accumulated Depreciation on Furniture & Fittings (40,850.26) (39,523.04)
Office Furniture & Equipment 142,320.14 142,320.14
Less Accumulated Depreciation on Office Furniture & Equipment (124,451.63) (118,506.17)
Plant & Equipment 888,708.18 841,051.92
Less Accumulated Depreciation on Plant & Equipment (594,489.91) (546,339.13)
Plant & Equipment - Bar & Catering 65,184.53 57,554.53
Less Accumulated Depreciation on Bar & Catering (40,026.47) (36,319.02)
Total Plant and Equipment at Cost 380,692.89 384,427.87
Total Plant and Equipment 380,692.89 384,427.87
Total Plant and Equipment, Motor Vehicles 380,692.89 384,427.87
JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023
8. Intangibles
Trademark 23,782.50 23,782.50
Total Intangibles 23,782.50 23,782.50
JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023
9. Trade and Other Payables
Trade Payables
Accounts Payable 51,543.49 95,403.04
Total Trade Payables 51,543.49 95,403.04
GST 33,003.08 30,218.43
PAYG Withholdings Payable 14,965.00 16,063.00
Superannuation Payable 34,233.20 29,980.10
Total Trade and Other Payables 133,744.77 171,664.57
JUL 2023-MAR 2024 2023
10. Employee Entitlements
Provision for Annual Leave 20,835.08 45,571.30
Provision for Long Service Leave - Full Time 20,049.57 58,308.23
Provision for Long Service Leave - Casual & Part Time 72,053.64 63,919.92
Total Employee Entitlements 112,938.29 167,799.45
These notes should be read in conjunction with the attached Audit Report.
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G.J. Walsh & co
W Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

True and Fair Position

Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc
For the 7 months ended 31 March 2024

Annual Statements Give True and Fair View of Financial Position and Performance of the Association
We, Maree Westwood, and Peter O'Reilly, being members of the committee of Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc, certify that -

The statements attached to this certificate give a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of Ipswich
Greyhound Racing Club Inc during and at the end of the financial period of the association ending on 31 March 2024.

Maree Westwood (Secretary)

Date / /

Peter O'Reilly (Treasurer)

Date / /
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G.J. Walsh & co
W Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADYISORS AND AUDITORS

Auditor's Report

Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc
For the 7 months ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditors Report to the members of the Association

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club
Inc (the association), which comprises the committee’s report,the assets and liabilities statement as at 31 March 2024, the
income and expenditure statement for the year then ended, cash flow statement, notes comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certification by members of the committee on the annual
statements giving a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the association.

Opinion

In our opinion it was not practical that all sources of revenue of the Association have been received and banked prior to their
initial entry in the accounting records. Our audit relating to these items were therefore limited to amounts recorded.

In our opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects (or gives a true and fair view in accordance with the
Associations Incorporation Act 1981. The financial position of Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc as at 31 March 2024 and (of) its
financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial
statements, and the requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 1981 ('the Act').

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of our report. We are independent of
the Association in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the code) that are relevant to
our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report is prepared to
assist the association in Queensland: Associations Incorporation Act 1981. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for
another purpose. Our report is intended solely for the association and should not be distributed to or used by parties other than
the association. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibility of Committee of Management and those charged with governance

Committee of Management are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with
the Associations Incorporation Act 1981, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the association's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the association or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the association's financial reporting process.
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°
Auditor's Report G-J- WaISh & CO
W Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADVISORS AND AUDITORS

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements
relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the association’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report, in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the association’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Mo

T J Sauer CPA
Auditor’s address: G J Walsh & Co 213 Brisbane Street, Ipswich, QLD, 4305

Dated: 14 August 2024
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G.J. Walsh & co
W Certified Practising Accountants
TAX AGENTS, BUSINESS ADYISORS AND AUDITORS

Certificate By Members of the Committee

Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc
For the 7 months ended 31 March 2024

We, Maree Westwood and Peter O'Reilly certify that:
1. | attended the annual general meeting of the association heldon[ / / ].

2. The financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024 were submitted to the members of the association at its
annual general meeting.

Maree Westwood (Secretary)

Date / /

Peter O'Reilly (Treasurer)

Date / /
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QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

BOARD REPORT

The Board members submit herewith the annual report of the Queensland Greyhound Racing Club Inc. for the
financial period 12 March 2024 to 30 June 2024.

Board Members

The names of the Board members during the year or since the end of the financial year are:

Les Bein — Chairman (Appointed 12/3/24) Robert Essex — Deputy Chairman (Appointed 12/3/24)
Bob Lambert (Appointed 12/3/24 & Resigned Graham Hall (Appointed 12/3/24)

23/5/2024))

Steve Woods (Appointed 12/3/24 & Resigned 18/12/23) Wade Core (Appointed 12/3/24)

Eleanor Wallis — Treasurer (Appointed 23/5/24) William Warner (Appointed 18/7/24)

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the association during the financial year were:

- Host race meetings throughout the year; and
- To provide social facilities to members of the association.

Significant Changes

The members of the Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. and the Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc. voted to
approve the amalgamation of the two racing clubs, with final approval granted for the establishment of the Queensland

Greyhound Racing Club Inc. obtained on 12 March 2024.

From 12 March 2024, the old associations ceased to exist and the assets, liabilities and operations of the two clubs

were transferred to the Queensland Greyhound Racing Club Inc.

Subsequent Events

Foliowing the completion of “The Q" greyhound racing complex, the operations of both the Albion Park and Ipswich
facilities will transfer to The Q. The expected completion and transfer to the new racing complex will occur in the 2025

calendar year.

Operating Result

The deficit after providing for income tax amounted to $559,065.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Board.

L Bein - Chairman

E Wallis - Treasurer

Dated this day of September 2024
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QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

Revenue

Accounting fees

Auction expenses

Audit fees

Affiliation fees

Committee expenses

Cost of food and beverage sales
Cost of merchandise sold
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs

Function expenses

Insurance

Investment expenses
Impairment expense

Legal expense

Motor vehicle expenses
Prizemoney

Promotions expense

Property expense

Racing expense

Repairs and maintenance
Restaurant expenses
Telephone expenses

Tote expenses

Travel expenses

Other expenses

Current year deficit before income tax
Income tax expense

Net current year deficit

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, net of tax

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Net current year deficit attributable to members of the association

Total comprehensive income attributable to members of the association

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Note 2024
$
3 1,977,421
(11,715)
(13,500)
5 (4,000)
(9,006)
(6,616)
(128,712)
(1,143)
(74,403)
(1,018,479)
(700)
(25,379)

(229,500
(92,232)
(456,409)
(206,999)
(82,511)
(35,592)
(2,449)
(5,296)
(13,974)
(68,898)
(559,065)

1a -
(559,065)

(187,342)
(187,342)
(746,407)

——

(559,065)
(746,407)
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QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash on hand

Accounts receivable and other debtors
Inventories on hand

Other

Financial assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Right of use assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other payables
Contract liability

Employee provisions

Lease liability

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee provisions

Lease liability

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Reserves
Retained surplus
TOTAL EQUITY

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

Note

©O© 0 N O

-
o

10
11
12
16

13
14
15
16

15
16

17

30/6/2024
$

2,703,140
736,114
46,777
87,923
2,920,990
6,494,944

3,253,376
1,631,667
8,181
4,793,224
11,288,168

—

577,862
122,000
273,893

9,535
983,290

103,231
103,231
1,086,521
10,201,647

808,592
9,303,055
10,020,647
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QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB iINC.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

Balance at 12 March 2024

Transfer from the Brisbane Greyhound
Racing Club Inc.

Transfer from the Ipswich Greyhound
Racing Club Inc.

Transfers to and from reserves

Comprehensive income
Net deficit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income
attributable to members of the
association

Balance at 30 June 2024

Financial Asset Other
Revaluation Reserves Retained
Reserve surplus Total
Note $ $ $ $
2 1,085,934 - 5,721,792 6,807,726
2 - 10,700 4,129,628 4,140,328
1,085,934 10,700 9,851,420 10,948,054
- (10,700) 10,700 -
- - (559,065) (559,065)
17 (187,342) - E (187,342)
(187,342) - (559,065) (746,407)
898,592 - 9,303,055 10,201,647

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

Note 2024
$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Grants (state) operating received 773,378
Receipts from customers 1,219,676
Payments to suppliers and employees (2,226,366)
Interest paid (21)
Net cash provided by operating activities (233,333)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7,778)
Investment income received 36,589
Proceeds from sale of financial assets 744 957
Net cash used in investing activities 773,768
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of leases liability (7,208)
Net cash used in financing activities - (7,208)
Net increase in cash held 533,227
Cash transferred — Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. 2 1,842,964
Cash transferred — Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc. 2 326,949
Cash on hand at end of financial year 6 2,703,140

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

The financial statements cover Queensland Greyhound Racing Club Inc. as an individual entity. Queensland
Greyhound Racing Club Inc. is an association incorporated in Queensland on 12 March 2024 and operating pursuant
to the Associations Incorporation Act 1981.

These are the first set of financial statements for the association and cover the period 12 March 2024 to 30 June
2024,

The financial statements were authorised for issue on ?? September 2024 by the members of the Board.

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

Queensland Greyhound Racing Club Inc. applies Australian Accounting Standards — Simplified Disclosure
Requirements as set out in AASB 1060: General Purpose Financial Statements — Simplified Disclosures for For-Profi
and Not-for-Profit Tier 2 Entities.

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards — Simplified Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board
(AASB) and the Associations Incorporation Act 1981. The association is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting
purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial
statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions to which they apply.
Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and have
been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are
based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded
to the nearest dollar.

Accounting Policies

a. Income Tax
The association is exempt from Income tax, by virtue of Section 50-45 of the Income Tax assessment Act
1997.

b. Inventories on Hand

Inventories held for sale are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventories heid for
distribution are measured at cost adjusted, when applicable, for any loss of service potential.

c. Property, Plant and Equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. In the eventthe carrying amount of plant and equipment

is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to the
estimated recoverable amount and impaimment logses are recognised in profit or loss A formal assessment
of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer to Note 1(f) for details of
impairment).

The cost of fixed assets constructed by the association includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing
costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
association and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as expenses in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.



QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset's useful life
commencing from the time the asset is available for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of either the unexpired pericd of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
Leasehold improvements 5-10%
Motor Vehicles 22.5%
Plant and equipment 5-33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

Leases

The association assess whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The association
recognises a Right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in
which it is the lessee, except for short term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less)
and leases of low value assets (less than $5,000). For these leases, the association recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the association’s incremental borrowing rate. The association’s
incremental borrowing rate was determined by reference to borrowing rates available to the association from
financial institutions for the purchase of assets similar to those being leased.

Lease payments made are split between the interest component (using the effective interest method) and a
reduction in the lease liability. The lease liability is split between current and non-current, with the current
portion representing the expected reduction in the lease liability in the next 12 months.

The Right-of-use assets is valued at the same value of the lease liability on inception and any initial direct
costs. The right of assets is subject to depreciation using the straight line method over the shorter of the period
of the lease or the useful live of the underlying asset. The value of the Right-of-use asset is reduced by any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset whichever is the
shortest.

Concessionary Leases

For leases that have significantly below-market terms and conditions principally to enable the association to
further its objectives (commonly known as peppercorn/concessionary leases), the association has adopted
the temporary relief under AASB 2019-8 and measures the right of use assets at cost on initial recognition.

Finance leases

Leases of fixed assets, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset
(but not the legal ownership) are transferred to the association, are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised, recognising an asset and a liability equal to the present value of the minimum
lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives where it is likely that
the association will obtain ownership of the asset. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the
lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 20624

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e.

Financial Instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the association becomes a party to the
contractual provisions to the instrument, For financial assets, this is the date that the association commits itself
to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs
except where the instrument is classified “at fair value through profit or loss”, in which case transaction costs
are expensed to profit or loss immediately. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to
determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain a
significant financing component or if the practical expedient has been applied as specified in AASB 15.63.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at:

- amortised cost; or

- fair value through profit and loss.

Financial asset

Financial assets are subsequently measured at:

- amortised cost;

- fair value through other comprehensive income; or

- fair value through profit and loss

on the basis of the two primary criteria, being:

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; and

= the business model for managing the financial assets.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost when it meets the following conditions:
- the financial asset is managed solely to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income when it meets

the following conditions:

- the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates; and

- the business model for managing the financial asset comprises both contractual cash flows collection
and the selling of the financial asset.

By default, all other financial assets that do not meet the conditions of amortised cost and fair value through

other comprehensive income's measurement condition are subsequently measured at fair vaiue inrough provit
and loss.

Equity instruments — shares and units in listed investments

The association made an irrevocable election to measure the equity instruments — shares and units in listed
investments, in other comprehensive income, while the dividend revenue received on underlying equity
instruments investment will still be recognised in profit and loss.

Derecognition

Derecognition refers to the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from the
statement of financial position.



QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

€.

Financial Instruments
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A liability is derecognised when it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires). An exchange of an existing financial liability for a new one with substantially modified
terms, or a substantial modification to the terms of a financial liability, is treated as an extinguishment of the
existing liability and recognition of a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the asset is
transferred in such a way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred.

All of the following criteria need to be satisfied for derecognition of a financial asset:
- the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or been transferred;
- all risk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been substantially transferred; and

- the association no longer controls the asset (i.e. it has no practical ability to make unilateral decisions
to sell the asset to a third party).

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity which was elected to be classified under fair value through other
comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment
The association recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on;

- financial assets that are measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income;

Loss allowance is not recognised for:
- financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss; or
- equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Expected credit losses are the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of a
financial instrument. A credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due and all cash
flows expected to be received, all discounted at the original effective interest rate of the financial instrument.

The association uses the simplified approaches to impairment for its trade receivables, as applicable under
AASB 9:

The simplified approach does not require tracking of changes in credit risk in every reporting period, but instead
requires the recognition of lifetime expected credit loss at all.times.

In measuring the expected credit loss, a provision matrix for trade receivables was used taking into
consideration various data to get to an expected credit loss (i.e. diversity of its customer base, appropriate
groupings of its historical loss experience, etc).

Recognition of expected credit losses in financial statements

At each reporting date, the association recognised the movement in the loss allowance as an impairment gain
or loss in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost includes the loss allowance relating to
that asset.

Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income. An amount in relation to change in credit risk is
transferred from other comprehensive income to profit or loss at every reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

f.

Impairment of Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the association assesses whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. The assessment will consider both external and internal sources of information. If such an
indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing the recoverable amount of that
asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use, to the asset's carrying
amount. Any excess of the asset's carrying amount over its recoverable amount is immediately recognised in
profit or loss,

Where the future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent upon the asset's ability to

generate net cash inflows and when the association would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining
future economic benefits, value in use is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of an asset.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the association estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is recognised against the revaluation surplus
in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the
revaluation surplus for that class of asset.

Employee Provisions

Short-term employee benefits

Provision is made for the association’s obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee
benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before 12 months
after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service, including wages,
salaries and superannuation. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts
expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.

The association’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and superannuation
are recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits

Provision is made for employees’ annual leave entitlements not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service. Other long-
term employee benefits (including long service leave entitlements) are measured at the present value of the
expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future
wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures, and are discounted at rates determined
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have maturity dates
that approximate the terms of the obligations. Any remeasurements of obligations for other long-term
employee benefits for changes in assumptions are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the
changes occur.

The association’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current provisions in its
statement of financial position, except where the association does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, in which case the obligations are presented as
current provisions.

Cash on Hand

Cash on hand includes cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Accounts Receivable and Other Debtors

Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable
from customers for goods or services sold in the ordinary course of business. Receivables expected to be
collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other
receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. Refer to Note 1(e) for further discussion on
the determination of impairment losses.



QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOCD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

i

Revenue and Other Income

Revenue from hosting race meetings are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
under the terms of the agreement with Racing Queensland. Revenue is recognised when the specific
performance obligations are satisfied. This is generally upon completion of a race meeting.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance obligations have been satisfied.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery, as this corresponds to the completion of
the performance obligations.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial assets is
the rate inherent in the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has
been established.

Revenue from the provision of membership subscriptions is recognised on a straight line basis over the
financial year.

For grants and other contributions of assets, that do not meet the enforceable and sufficiently specific
performance obligations criteria under AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the revenue is
recognised upon recognition of the financial asset as required under AASB 1058: Income for Not-for-profil
Entities. This is generally upon receipt.

For grants received to acquire or construct a non-financial assets (Property, plant and equipment) that is
retained by the association for its own use, the amounts received are recognised as unearned income and
only recognised as income when the association has purchased or constructed the non-financial asset. The
association recognises income in profit or loss when or as the association satisfies its obligations under the
terms of the grant.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.
Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount
of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the
statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable, to the ATO are presented as operating cash flows
included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.

Accounts Payable and Other Payables

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for
goods and services received by the association during the reporting period that remain unpaid. The balance
is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably
measured. Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation
at the end of the reporting period.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The Board evaluates estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial statements based on historical
knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future
events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the
association.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

n.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
Key estimates
i) Impairment — general

The association assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluation of conditions and
events specific to the association that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of
relevant assets are reassessed using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key
assumptions.

Key judgments

iy Provision for impairment of receivables
The association reviews the receivables outstanding at the end of the year for any debtors that are unlikely
to be collected. A provision for impairment of receivables is recognised for those debts that are considered
uncollectable.

i) Investment in Shares in Publically listed entities

The association has an investment in the shares of publically listed entities with a total value of $3,253,376
at the end of the reporting period. Should share values decline to a level which is in excess of 50% below
cost or should prices remain at levels below cost for a period in excess of 24 months, the association has
determined that such investments will be considered impaired in the future.

Employee benefits

For the purpose of measurement, AASB 119. Employee Benefits defines obligations for short-term
employee benefits as obligations expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render the related services. As the association expects
that all of its employees would use all of their annual leave entitlements earned during a reporting period
before 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the association believes that obligations for annual
leave entitlements satisfy the definition of short-term employee benefits and, therefore, can be measured
at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid to employees when the obligations are settled.

Fair Value of Assets

The association measures some of its assets at fair value on a recurring basis depending on the requirements
of the applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

=

Fair value is the price the association would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability
in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants
at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is used
to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the characteristics of the
specific asset or liability. The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are
determined using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent
possible, the use of observable market data.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the asset or liability
(i.e. the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the absence of such
a market, the most advantageous market available to the association at reporting date (i.e. the market that
maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset or minimises the payment made to transfer the liability, after
taking into account transaction costs and transport costs)



QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB iINC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
p. New and amended Accounting standards adopted by the Association

Accounting standards adopted during the year

There were no new Australian Accounting Standards adopted during the year that had a material impact on
these financial statements.

New accounting standards applicable in future financial years

The Australian Accounting Standards Board has issued new accounting standards that will become
applicable in future financial years. The directors believe that these new accounting standards will not have
a material impact on the financial statements of the association in future years.

NOTE 2: AMALGMATION OF THE BRISBANE GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC AND THE IPSWICH
GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

The members of the Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. and the Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc voted to
approve the amalgamation of the two racing clubs, with final approval granted for the establishment of the Queensland
Greyhound Racing Club Inc. obtained on 12 March 2024.

From 12 March 2024 the old associations ceased to exist and the assets, liabilities and operations of the two clubs
were transferred to the Queensland Greyhound Racing Club Inc.

A summary of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the old associations that were transferred is as follows:

Note Transfers from Transfers from Ipswich
Brisbane Greyhound Greyhound Racing
Racing Club Inc. Club Inc.
$ $

Cash and cash equivalents 1,842,964 326,949
Accounts receivable and other debtors 728,496 154,602
Inventories 20,115 25,387
Other Assets - Prepayments 86,366 -
Financial assets — term deposits - 2912740
Financial assets — shares and units in listed entities 4,038,730 -
Property, plant and equipment 11 648,598 943,550
Right of use assets 16 14,325 -
Intangible assets — trademarks - 23,783
TOTAL ASSETS _ 7,379,594 4,387,011
Accounts payable and other payables 301,023 133,745
Employee provisions — annual leave 15 118,327 20,835
Employee provisions — long service leave 15 135,909 92,103
Lease liability 16 16,609 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 571,868 246,683
NET ASSETS 6,807,726 4,140,328
Total Revenue (1 July 2023 to 11 March 2024) 2,935,854 2,440,942
Total Expenses (1 July 2023 to 11 March 2024) (3,042,893) (2,259,010)
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (107,039) 181,932
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QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

Note 2024
NOTE 3: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME $
Racing revenue:
- Dog Trials 47,310
- Grants (state) operating 830,042
877,352
Other revenue:
- Broadcasting revenue 420,271
- Capital Grants 30,865
- Food and beverage sale 298,730
- Functions 30,824
- Gain on sale of financial assets 155,195
- Investment income 65,845
- Membership fees 182
- Management fees 555
- Sales of merchandise 1,675
- Sponsorships 34,500
- Tote income 11,204
- Wages recovered 28,409
- QOther Income 21,814
1,100,069
Total revenue 1,977,421
NOTE 4: EXPENSES
Employee benefit expense:
- Salaries and wages 892,940
- Superannuation expense 90,200
- WorkCover 13,000
- Fringe benefits tax 17,339
- Payroll tax 5,000
1,018,479
Interest expense:
- Bad Debts 545
- Interest paid - leases 134
- Interest paid - other o 21 )

700



QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

Note
NOTE 5: AUDITORS’ FEES

Remuneration of the auditor of the association for:
- Auditing or reviewing the financial report
- Accounting and taxation services

NOTE 6: CASH ON HAND
Cash at bank
Cash on hand
21

Reconciliation of cash

Cash on hand at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows
is reconciled to items in the statement of financial position as follows:

Cash at bank — unrestricted

Cash on hand — unrestricted

NOTE 7: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER DEBTORS
CURRENT
Trade receivable
Provision for impairment
Other receivables
21

NOTE 8: INVENTORIES ON HAND
CURRENT
Promotional material (at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Food and beverage (at lower of cost and net realisable value)

NOTE 9: OTHER ASSETS
CURRENT

Prepayments

NOTE 10: FINANCIAL ASSETS
CURRENT
Investments designated at amortised cost
Term deposits 21

2024
$

4,000

4,000

2,608,716
94,424
2,703,140

———————

2,608,716
94,424
2,703,140

_—

161,667

574,447
736,114

4,423
42,354
46,777

87,923

2,920,990

Page 17 of 27



QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

Note 2024
NOTE 10: FINANCIAL ASSETS $
NON CURRENT
Investments in equity instruments designated as at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Listed investments, at fair value:
- shares in listed securities at fair value 21 3,253,376

The term deposits have temms of less than 12 months with interest rates ranging between 3.5%-5% per annum. A
term deposit with the value of $400,000 is used as collateral for a bank guarantee provided under a lease
arrangement. These funds are not available for the use in the operations of the Club.

Investments in equity instruments are held for medium-to long-term planned purposes and are not held for trading.
The association elected to designate investments in equity instruments as at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The Board believe that recognising current shorter-term fluctuations in these investments' fair value in profit
or loss would not be in line with the association's plan to hold them over a longer term.

NOTE 11: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold land improvements:

At cost 1,068,277
Accumulated depreciation (346,096)
722,181
Plant and equipment:
At cost 2,158,898
Accumulated depreciation (1,445,386)
713,512
Motor Vehicles:
At cost 146,472
Accumulated depreciation (50,498)
95,974
Total property, plant and equipment 1,531,667

Movements in carrying amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and
the end of the current financial year:

Leasehold land Plant and
Improvements Equipment Motor Vehicles Total
$ $ $

Transfers from Brisbane 181,756 367,277 ' 99,565 648,598
Greyhound Racing Club Inc.
Transfers from Ipswich 562,857 380,693 - 943,550
Greyhound Racing Club Inc.
Additions - 7,778 - 7,778
Disposals - - - -
Depreciation expense (22,432) (42,236) (3,591) (68,259)
Balance at 30 June 2024 722,181 713,512 95,974 1,531,667
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QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024
NOTE 11: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Write off Leasehold Improvements and Plant and Equipment

At the expiration of the leases held for the use of Albion Park and Ipswich racecourses, the leasehold
improvements and certain items of plant and equipment will need to be scrapped or remain at the racecourses.
The club will cease its ownership of these items, be written off by the club and recorded as a loss on disposal at
the conclusion of the leases.

NOTE 12: INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note 2024
$
NON CURRENT
Trademarks
At cost 23,783
Accumulated impairment (23,783)

Trademarks were obtained by the former Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc over the names of races held by the
club. The value of the trademarks were assessed for impairment at 30 June 2024 as required by the Australian
Accounting Standard AASB 138: Intangible Assets.

NOTE 13: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER PAYABLES
CURRENT

Unsecured liabilities:

Trade payables 141,341
Other payable 353,092
Unearned revenue — Sponsorships and memberships 2,227
GST liability 81,202

577,862

Financial liabilities at amortised cost classified as accounts payable and other
payables

Accounts payable and other payables:

- total current 577,862
- total non-current -
577,862
Less: Unearned revenue (2,227)
Financial liabilities as accounts payable and other payables 21 575,635
NOTE 14: CONTRACT LIBAILITY
CURRENT
Contract liability 122,000
122,000

The contract liability represent the proceeds from the annual greyhound auction that are to be utilised as prize
moneys for a greyhound race to occur in the 2024-2025 financial year.



QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

Note 2024
NOTE 15: EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS $
CURRENT
Employee provisions — annual leave entitlements 150,491
Employee provisions — long service leave entitlements 123,402
273893
NON CURRENT
Employee provisions — long service leave entitlements 103,231
103,231
Analysis of Employee Provisions Annual Leave Long Service
Entitlements Leave
$ Entitlements
$
Opening balance at 12 March - -
Transfers from Brisbane Greyhound Racing Club Inc. 118,327 135,909
Transfers from Ipswich Greyhound Racing Club Inc. 20,835 92,103
Additional provisions 43,966 12,526
Amounts used (32,637) (13,905)
Batance at 30 June 150,491 226,633

Employee Provisions - Leave Entitlements
The provision for employee benefits represents amounts accrued for annual leave and long service leave.

The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitiements and the
amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the
required period of service and are expected . Based on past experience, the association does not expect the full
amount of annual leave or long service leave balances classified as current liabilities to be settled within the next
12 months. However, these amounts must be classified as current liabilities since the association does not have
an unconditional right to defer the settlement of these amounts in the event employees wish to use their leave

entitlement

The non-current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitiements that have
not yet vested in relation to those employees who have not yet completed the required period of service.

In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service
leave being taken is based upon historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria for employee benefits
have been discussed in Note 1(g).

NOTE 16: LEASES Note 2024

NON-CURRENT
Right-of-use assets — Plant and equipment
At cost 186,326

Accumulated depreciation (178,145)
8,181



QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 16: LEASES

Opening Transfers Additions Disposals Depreciation Closing
Balance Balance
$ $ $ $ $ $
Plant and equipment - 14,325 - - (6,144) 8,181
- 14,325 - - (6,144) 8,181

Right of use assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the term of the lease. The lease term is 7
years. The lease is in relation to Photocopiers.

The association has a commitment with Racing Queensland Limited with respect to its occupancy at the Albion
Park Raceway. From 1 July 2011, no rent was payable by the association to Racing Queensland Limited for rent of
the Albion Park facility. Under AASB 16, Leases and AASB 1058, Income for Not-for-profit Entities this arrangement
is considered a peppercorn lease and has not been accounted for under the standards as it is considered to be
immaterial. At the conclusion of this arrangement certain items of leasehold improvements and plant and equipment
will be scrapped or transferred to Racing Queensland.

The association has a lease with respect to its occupancy at the Ipswich Greyhound Race Track. The lease has a
term of 12 months, expiring on 31 January 2025. Under AASB 16; Leases this arrangement is considered a short
term lease and has not been accounted for under the standard. Lease payments of $60,000 have been made during
the year and at 30 June 2024 there is the amount of $140,000 owing on the lease.

Under the terms of the lease for the Ipswich Greyhound Race Track the association is required to pay a make good
payment of $350,000 to the lessor and is required to grant ownership to certain items of leasehold improvements
and plant and equipment to the lessor.

Note 2024
$
CURRENT
Lease liability 21 9,535
NON-CURRENT
Lease liability 21 -
Opening Transfers Additions Repayments Interest Closing
Balance Balance
$ $ $ $ $ $
Lease Liability - 16,609 - (7,208) 134 9,535
- 16,609 - (7,208) 134 9,535

NOTE 17: RESERVES
Financial Asset Revaluation Reserve

The financial assets revaluation reserve represents the cumulative amount of fair vaiue gains/losses recognised in
other comprehensive income in remeasuring the investments in shares in listed companies.

NOTE 18: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Under the terms of the lease for the Ipswich Greyhound Race Track the association is required to pay a make good
payment of $350,000. A bank guarantee of $400,000 has been provided under this lease and will be used to cover
the make good payment required to be paid at the conclusion of the lease.



QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024
Note 2024

NOTE 19: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD $

Following the completion of "The Q" greyhound racing complex, the operations of both the Albion Park and Ipswich
facilities will transfer to The Q. The expected completion and transfer to the new racing complex will occur in the
2025 calendar year.

NOTE 20: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a.

Key Management Personnel

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
association, directly or indirectly, including its Board members, is considered key management personnel.

Key management personnel compensation:

- short-term benefits 124,079
- post-employment benefits 13,326
137,405

The association’s Board members are not entitled to receive remuneration for the services provided to the
association.
Other Related Parties

Other related parties include close family members of key management personnel, and entities that are
controlled or jointly controlled by those key management personnel individually or collectively with their close
family members.

There were no transactions with a related party of the association or the key management personnel.

NOTE 21: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The association's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, term deposits, investments in listed
shares, receivables, payables and leases.

The carrying amounts for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9: Financial
Instruments as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost:
Cash on hand 6 2,703,140
Accounts receivable and other debtors 7 736,114

Financial assets designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investments in listed shares and units 10 3,253,376

Financial assets designated at amortised cost

Total financial assets
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QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

NOTE 21: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT Note 2024
$

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

—  Accounts payable and other payables 13 575,635
—  Lease liability 16 9,535
Total financial liabilities 585,170

Refer to Note 22 for detailed disclosures regarding the fair value measurement of the association’s financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Financial Risk Management Policies

The association’s Board is responsible for, among other issues, monitoring and managing financial risk exposures
of the association. The Board monitors the association's transactions and reviews the effectiveness of controls
relating to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Discussions on monitoring and managing financial risk exposures
are held by the Board.

The Board's overall risk management strategy seeks to ensure that the association meets its financial targets, while
minimising potential adverse effects of cash flow shortfalls.

NOTE 22: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The association has the following assets, as set out in the table below, that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis after initial recognition.

Valuation techniques

The association selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific
characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the association are
consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches:

— the market approach, which uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions for
identical or similar assets or liabilities;

— the income approach, which converts estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single
discounted present value; and

— the cost approach, which reflects the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity.

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use when
pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, the
association gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using market data (such as publicly available information on actual
transactions) and reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or
liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for which market data is not available and therefore are
developed using the best information available about such assumptions are considered unobservable.

The association does not subsequently measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis and has no assets
or liabilities that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis.
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QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

Note 2024
NOTE 22: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS $
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Investments in equity instruments designated as at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
—  shares in listed entities 10 3,253,376
3,253,376

For investments in listed entities, the fair values have been determined based on closing quoted bid prices at the
end of the reporting period.

NOTE 23: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The association's activities are largely funded by operating grants received from Racing Queensland Limited. At
the date of this report, the members of the Board had no reason to believe that Racing Queensland Limited would

not continue to provide financial support to the Club.

NOTE 24: ASSOCIATION DETAILS
The registered office and principal places of business of the association is:

Albion Park Raceway Ipswich Show Grounds
Amy Street 81 Warwick Street
BREAKFAST CREEK QLD 4010 IPSWICH QLD 4305

Page 24 of 27



QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

STATEMENT BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
FOR THE PERIOD 12 MARCH 2024 TO 30 JUNE 2024

In the opinion of the Board, the financial report as set out on pages 4 to 24:

1. Presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Queensland Greyhound Racing Club Inc. as
at 30 June 2024 and its perfformance for the period 12 March 2024 to 30 June 2024 in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards — Simplified Disclosure Requirements and the Association Incorporations
Act 1981.

2. At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Queensland Greyhound
Racing Club Inc. will be able to pay its debts as and when the fall due.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board and is signed for and on behalf of the Board
by:

L Bein

Chairman

................... [’ é"""‘—‘ﬁ ‘-’zﬂ'é’l’»
E Wallis

Treasurer

Dated this day of September 2024
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QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

Report on the Financial Report
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Queensland Greyhound Racing Club Inc., which comprises the statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2024, the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the period 12 March 2024 to 30 June 2024, notes comprising a summary of the material
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the statement by members of the Board.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of Queensland Greyhound Racing Club Inc. is in accordance with the

requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 1981 (Qld), including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the association’s financial position as at 30 June 2024 and of its performance for the year
then ended; and

(i) thatthe financial records kept by the association are such as to enable financial statements to be prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards — Simplified Disclosure Requirements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent
of the association in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's
APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in
Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Board of the association is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the association's annual report for the period 12 March 2024 to 30 June 2024, but does not include the financial report and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we canclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board for the Financial Report

The Board of the association is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Associations Incorporation Act 1981 (QId) and for such internal
control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financiai report that gives a true and fair view
and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the association's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
either intends to liquidate the association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
QUEENSLAND GREYHOUND RACING CLUB INC.

Report on the Financial Report
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than
for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

_ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the association’s internal

control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the Board.

_ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the association to cease to continue as a going
concern.

_ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PRIESTLEYS M C ANDREASSEN
Chartered Accountants Partner
Liability limited by a scheme approved under F i S ds L

Signed at Queensland on this  day of September 2024
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